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Villarreal, Michelle

From: Baumgartner, John
Sent: Tuesday, May 19, 2020 5:28 PM
To: Villarreal, Michelle
Cc: Hoover, David; Doan, Nghiem
Subject: FW: Galveston County MUD No. 80 Utility Agreement/League City Parkway Construction
Attachments: Section 8.03. Certain Road Construction (Clean).docx; Section 8.03. Certain Road Construction 

(Redline).pdf

See attachment and email below. 
 

John Baumgartner, ICMA-CM, P.E. 
City Manager 
Administration 
City of League City 
300 W Walker St 
League City, Texas 77573 
Phone: 281-554-1414 
 
 

 
 
CONFIDENTIALITY STATEMENT 
This message and all attachments are confidential and may be protected by the attorney-client and other privileges. If you 
are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, use, dissemination, forwarding, printing, copying, 
disclosure or distribution of this communication is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful. If you believe this message has 
been sent to you in error, please notify the sender by replying to this transmission or by calling the City of League City at 
281-554-1000, and destroy all copies of the original message. Unless expressly stated in this e-mail, nothing in this 
message shall be construed as a digital or electronic signature. Thank you for your cooperation.  

From: David Oliver <doliver@abhr.com>  
Sent: Friday, May 15, 2020 4:48 PM 
To: Hoover, David <David.Hoover@leaguecitytx.gov>; Becky Ullman <bullman@wilbowusa.com>; Baumgartner, John 
<john.baumgartner@leaguecitytx.gov> 
Cc: Christina Miller <cmiller@abhr.com> 
Subject: RE: Galveston County MUD No. 80 Utility Agreement/League City Parkway Construction 
 

John/David: 
 
As a follow up to my email below, I have enclosed for your review clean and redlined versions of our 
proposed revisions to Section 8.03 of the Utility Agreement to provide for the construction of the 
entirety of the League City Parkway improvements as part of the first phase of development.  We 
look forward to your comments.  
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Thanks, 
 
David 
_________________________________ 
David M Oliver, Jr. 
Allen Boone Humphries Robinson LLP 
 
From: Hoover, David <David.Hoover@leaguecitytx.gov>  
Sent: Friday, May 15, 2020 10:09 AM 
To: Becky Ullman <bullman@wilbowusa.com>; David Oliver <doliver@abhr.com>; Baumgartner, John 
<john.baumgartner@leaguecitytx.gov> 
Cc: Christina Miller <cmiller@abhr.com> 
Subject: Re: Galveston County MUD No. 80 Utility Agreement/League City Parkway Construction 
 

Thank you. 

David Hoover, AICP 
Executive Director 
Development Services 
City of League City 
300 W. Walker St. 
League City, Texas 77573 
Phone: 281-554-1450 
 
 

 
 
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

From: Becky Ullman <bullman@wilbowusa.com> 
Sent: Friday, May 15, 2020 10:00 AM 
To: David Oliver <doliver@abhr.com>; Baumgartner, John <john.baumgartner@leaguecitytx.gov>; Hoover, David 
<David.Hoover@leaguecitytx.gov> 
Cc: Christina Miller <cmiller@abhr.com> 
Subject: RE: Galveston County MUD No. 80 Utility Agreement/League City Parkway Construction  
  

** WARNING: This email originated from outside of the City of League City's email system. Do not click links or open attachments 
unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe** 

 
Wilbow concurs with these revisions as outlined below.   
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Thanks to all for your assistance, 
  

Becky Ullman | Vice President ‐ Houston                                                
Wilbow Corporation | www.wilbow.com  

1790 Hughes Landing Blvd. | Suite 400 | Houston, TX 77380 

Mobile: 281.732.2251 

bullman@wilbowusa.com 

  
  
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE:  The  information  contained  in  this message  is privileged and  confidential; 
intended only for the use of the addressee(s).  If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, 
you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is strictly 
prohibited.  If you have received this communication in error, please immediately notify sender and you 
are hereby instructed to delete all electronic copies and destroy all printed copies. 
  

From: David Oliver <doliver@abhr.com>  
Sent: Friday, May 15, 2020 9:56 AM 
To: Baumgartner, John <john.baumgartner@leaguecitytx.gov>; 'Hoover, David' <David.Hoover@leaguecitytx.gov> 
Cc: Becky Ullman <bullman@wilbowusa.com>; Christina Miller <cmiller@abhr.com> 
Subject: Galveston County MUD No. 80 Utility Agreement/League City Parkway Construction 
  

John/David: 
  
In support of the City’s desire for the entirety of the League City Parkway improvements (the 
“Improvements”) to be completed in one phase in order to expedite improved connectivity for City 
residents, Wilbow Corporation (“Wilbow”) is willing to agree to complete the Improvements in one 
construction contract/project as a part of its first phase of development.  In the event that the portion 
of the Improvements traversing Magnolia Creek experiences delay due to longer lead times in 
acquiring the necessary materials (i.e. drainage pipes) for that portion of the project, we propose 
adding language to the Utility Agreement that so long as Wilbow has awarded the construction 
contract for the Improvements, and all portions of the Improvements other than the portion 
traversing Magnolia Creek are substantially complete, the City will allow permits for Section 1 of the 
development to be issued so long as all other City requirements for permit issuance are met. 
  
Best Regards, 
  
David 
____________________________________ 
David M. Oliver, Jr. 
Partner 
Allen Boone Humphries Robinson LLP 
3200 Southwest Freeway, Suite 2600 
Houston, Texas  77027 
  
Main:       (713) 860‐6400 
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Direct:      (713) 860‐6465 
Fax:         (713) 860‐6665 
Mobile:     (832) 236‐5415 
Email:       doliver@abhr.com 
  



Section 8.03. Certain Road Construction. 

 

In order to provide major thoroughfare access to the development and as a 
condition of City acceptance of the first section of lots south of West League City 
Parkway, the Developer shall design and construct: (i) the portion of the extension 
(including all four lanes) of League City Parkway in the location designated on Exhibit 

“B”; and (ii) a four-lane parkway into the development divided by a customary median, 
as designated as “Westleigh Blvd” on Exhibit “B”.  Developer hereby agrees to dedicate 
the necessary right of way owned by Developer within the boundaries of the District for 
completion of League City Parkway and Westleigh Boulevard at no cost to the City; 
provided, however, that the City will be responsible for obtaining (via purchase or by 
exercise of eminent domain) any necessary right of way not otherwise owned by 
Developer for completion of League City Parkway contemplated in this Section both 
inside and outside the boundaries of the District.  Developer agrees to promptly pursue 
obtaining the necessary right of way not otherwise owned by Developer in order to 
proceed with construction of the League City Parkway extension.  In the event that 
Developer is unable to secure the necessary property rights following good faith efforts 
to negotiate with the current property owner, the City agrees to commence and diligently 
pursue the eminent domain process within forty-five (45) days following receipt of 
written notice from the Developer.  

In order to allow for a second point of entry into the development from League 
City Parkway and as a condition of approval of City acceptance for any section that 
causes the total number of developed lots within the District to exceed 150, the Developer 
shall design and construct a road upon the McFarland Drive Right of Way along the 
eastern boundary of the development, as designated as “McFarland Drive” on Exhibit 

“B” (“McFarland Drive”). Following the completion of such construction, the Developer 
shall formally dedicate McFarland Drive to the City of League City.  

In addition to the foregoing, as a condition of approval of City acceptance for any 
section that causes the total number of developed lots within the District to exceed 150, 
the Developer agrees to design and construct the portion of the extension of League City 
Parkway in the location designated on Exhibit “C” outside of the boundaries of the 
District (the “Additional Extension Project”) in conjunctionsimultaneously with 
Developer’s design and construction of the League City Parkway extension reflected on 
Exhibit “B”  The Additional Extension Project will include the additional two-lanes 
necessary to make League City Parkway four lanes wide.  The Parties recognize and 
understand that the portion of the Additional Extension Project traversing Magnolia 
Creek may experience timing delays impacting its substantial completion date due to 
longer lead times necessary in acquiring required contract materials.  Therefore, 
notwithstanding anything in this Section 8.03 to the contrary, the City agrees that so long 
as the Developer has awarded the construction contract for the League City Parkway 
improvements, including the Additional Extension Project, and all portions of the 



improvements other than the portion traversing Magnolia Creek are substantially 
complete, the City will allow permits for Section 1 of the development to be issued so 
long as all other City requirements for permit issuance are met.  

In consideration of this the commitment to complete the road improvements set 
forth herein and resulting completion thereof, the Parties agree to enter into a separate 
Development Agreement (the “Development Agreement”) whereby the City shall award 
Impact Fee Credit to Developer equal to the costs associated with design and construction 
of the Additional Extension Project in the location designated on Exhibit “C.”   The 
Parties hereby agree that the Development Agreement shall contain the following terms 
and conditions regarding the funding, design, and completion of the Additional 
Extension Project.  The City will confirm that the existing storm sewer system constructed 
in the median of League City Parkway is functional and does not require additional 
rehabilitation, repair or other work in conjunction with the Additional Extension Project.  
At such time the builders within the District obtain the required building permits, the 
roadway portion of the City’s impact fees (currently $4,880 per home) will be credited 
against Developer’s cost to design and construct the Additional Extension Project.  If the 
actual cost of the design and construction of the Additional Extension Project is greater 
than $1,986,160, the City will reimburse the Developer for any overage from the City’s 
roadway impact fee funds within sixty (60) days of completion and certification of costs.  
To the extent that remaining road impact fees to be generated by development within the 
District remain following completion of the Additional Extension Project, the City agrees 
that such amounts shall be credited against Developer’s cost to design and construct the 
portion of League City Parkway as shown on Exhibit “B.”  The portion of the Additional 
Extension Project from Maple Leaf Drive to Westover Park Avenue will be constructed 
concurrently with the Section 1 improvements for the District.  However, if the Developer 
chooses to develop a model home park of less than 20 lots as Section 1, then the 
construction of this first segment of the Additional Extension Project shall coincide with 
the development of Section 2 (or the first section of production lots within the District).  
The portion of the Additional Extension Project from Westover Park Avenue to the 
current terminus east of Magnolia Creek will be constructed concurrently with the 
Section of the District that causes the total lot count within the community to exceed 150 
lots.  Improvements within the median and south side right-of-way behind the curb shall 
be limited limited to restoring grading and hydromulch seeding of disturbed areas (no 
irrigation, sidewalks, trees, or other landscaping improvements).  In conjunction with the 
Additional Extension Project, the City will confirm that no environmental approvals are 
required for working within the Mag Creek waterway, as well as secure and fund (as 
necessary via purchase or by exercise of eminent domain) all of the required real estate 
rights/rights of way not otherwise owned by the Developer needed in order to complete 
the Additional Extension Project.   

In addition to the other road improvements set forth herein, in order to allow for 
a second point of entry into the development from League City Parkway and as a 
condition of approval of City acceptance for any section that causes the total number of 



developed lots within the District to exceed 150, the Developer shall design and construct 
a road upon the McFarland Drive Right of Way along the eastern boundary of the 
development, as designated as “McFarland Drive” on Exhibit “B” (“McFarland Drive”). 
Following the completion of such construction, the Developer shall formally dedicate 
McFarland Drive to the City of League City.  

 

The parties shall collaborate to complete all of the road construction contemplated 
in this Section 8.03 in a manner that does not materially interfere with or delay the 
progress of construction of the development.  Furthermore, the parties agree that the road 
construction contemplated in this Section 8.03 must conform with the City’s standards 
and specifications for road construction.  
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